ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 20, 2007
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representative Mark Neuman

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Johnny Ellis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 135

"An Act establishing a higher education savings program for
eligible children who were placed in out-of-honme care by the
st at e; and providing for confidentiality of i dentifying
information of a beneficiary under the program™

- MOVED CSHB 135(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 178
"An Act relating to the Governor's Conmittee on Enploynent of
People with Disabilities; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 178(HES) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 113
"An Act relating to the prescription and use of pharmaceutical
agents, including controlled substances, by optonetrists."”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 173

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 20, 2007



"An Act relating to court approval of involuntary admnistration
of psychotropic nedication; and providing for an effective
date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 135

SHORT TITLE: TU TI ON FOR CERTAI N CHI LDREN
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE

02/ 14/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 07 (H HES, FIN
03/ 20/ 07 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 178
SHORT TI TLE: EMPLOYM T OF PEOPLE W DI SABI LI TI ES COM
SPONSOR(s): HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES

03/ 05/ 07 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (H HES, FIN
03/ 20/ 07 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 113
SHORT TI TLE. OPTOMETRI STS USE OF PHARMACEUTI CALS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SAMJELS

01/ 30/ 07 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 07 (H HES, L&C
03/ 20/ 07 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ROBERT FOOTE- JONES, St af f

to Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 135 on behal f of
Representative Bill Stoltze, sponsor.

JI M LYNCH, Associate Vice President

St at ewi de Admi ni stration

Uni versity of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 135.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 20, 2007



M CHAEL CURRAN, Program Coordi nat or

O fice of Faith-Based and Comrunity Initiatives (FBCl)
Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 135.

CH P WAGONER, Executive Director

Al aska Conference of Catholic Bishops

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 135.

M KE LESMANN, Comrunity Rel ati ons Manager

O fice of Children’s Services (OCS)

Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing of HB 135.

ROBERT MYERS, Intern

to Representative Peggy WI son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 178, on behal f of
Representati ve Peggy W1 son, sponsor.

GALE SINNOTT, Director

St at ewi de Pr ograns

Di vision of Vocational Rehabilitation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent (DLVD)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 178.

PAULA SCAVERA, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 178

SYDNEY MORGAN, St aff

to Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the Committee Substitute for HB
113 on behal f of Representative Ral ph Sanuels, prime sponsor.

Cl NDY BRADFORD, Doctor of Opht hal nol ogy
Aneri can Acadeny of Opht hal nol ogy;

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 20, 2007



Assi stant Professor,

Dean A. McCGee Eye Institute

Depart ment of Opht hal nol ogy

Uni versity of Oklahoma Health Center

Uni versity of Gkl ahoma

Ckl ahoma CGity, Okl ahoma

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 113.

LESLEY L. WALLS, Doctor of Optonetry;

Doct or of Medi ci ne;

Pr esi dent

Southern California College of Optonetry

Ful lerton, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 113.

M CHAEL BENNETT, Doctor of Optonetry;

Pr esi dent

Al aska Optonetric Association

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 113.

BOB LOESCHER
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 113.

JI LL GEERI NG MATHESON, Doctor of Optonetry;

Chair

Al aska Board of Exam ners in Optonetry

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an individual, testified in
support of HB 113.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci a
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:02:56 PM
Representatives W]Ison, Seaton, Roses, and Fairclough were
present at the call to order. Representati ves Neuman, Ci ssna
and Gardner arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 135-TU TI ON FOR CERTAI N CHI LDREN

3:03: 08 PM
CHAI R W LSON announced that the first order of business would be

HOUSE BILL NO 135 "An Act establishing a higher education
savings program for eligible children who were placed in out-of-

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 20, 2007



home care by the state; and providing for confidentiality of
identifying information of a beneficiary under the program™

3:05: 00 PM

ROBERT FOOTE-JONES, Staff to Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska
State Legislature, introduced HB 135 on behalf of the sponsor.
M. Foote-Jones informed the commttee that HB 135 is a
conpanion bill to SB 76, sponsored by Senator Johnny Ellis. The

bill wll assist children in foster care to attain higher
education through the ASPIRE program which is an acronym for
Al aska's youth Succeed when People |nvest Resources in
Educat i on. This legislation wll allow churches, comunity
or gani zati ons, nonprofits, busi nesses, and individuals to
establish education savings accounts for children in foster
care. The bill authorizes the Ofice of Children's Services

(OCS), Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS), to rel ease
necessary information to the Alaska Ofice of Faith-Based and
Community Initiatives (FBCI) in order to open a state sponsored
University of Alaska (UA) Section 529, Internal Revenue Service
col |l ege saving plan in the nane of the foster child.

MR. FOOTE-JONES explained that the funds can be wused for
educational or vocational training, in addition to tuition. The
beneficiaries of this program will be chosen by OCS for their
age and the length of time, over a mninum of two years, that
t hey have been in foster care. M. Foote-Jones explained that a
foster child is "aged out" of the state's custody at the age of
18, without further support fromthe state. He pointed out that
children in foster care nost |likely have no chance to further
t heir educati on.

3:07:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked whether the sponsor has been in
contact with the Annie E. Casey Foundation or the Al aska Court
System which is working on a related program

MR, FOOTE- JONES replied no.

3:08:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that this <could be a very
i nportant program Reaching the age of 18 does not nean that a

child is ready for independence. She asked whether the FBCl or
the OCS has issued an opinion on this bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 20, 2007



MR. FOOTE-JONES replied that the FBCI is represented at the
heari ng.

3:09:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked whet her the savings account could be
used at an institution of higher learning other than the
Uni versity of Al aska.

MR. FOOTE-JONES answered that this fund is available for any
educati onal purpose until the beneficiary reaches the age of 30.

3:10: 37 PM

JIM LYNCH, Associate Vice President, Statewi de Adm nistration,
University of Al aska (UA), stated his support for HB 135. He
noted that the acronymfor the programis ASPIRE, and it holds a
simlar goal as the general UA college savings program for

Al aska youth and their famlies. M. Lynch expressed his hope
that all Alaska students expect to continue to post secondary
education after graduation from high school. He relayed that 50

percent of the children in foster care are from mddle incone
famlies and many of these children come from famlies wth
| oner incones, and where the parents my not have been to

col | ege. It allows the student, from an early age, to plan to
go to college. M. Lynch concluded by pointing out that if the
funds are not utilized by one student, the account wl| be re-

directed to another foster child.
3:13: 36 PM

M CHAEL CURRAN, Program Coordinator, Ofice of Faith-Based and
Community Initiatives (FBCl), Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), stated his
support for HB 135, paraphrasing from a prepared statenent,
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

As a worker for social justice and comrunity buil ding,
an ordained priest, and former teacher for over twenty
years in the rural, renote, and snmall comunities of
Al aska, | am very aware of the challenges that face
our youth in out-of-hone care.

Prior to ny position with the Al aska Ofice of Faith-
Based and Community Initiatives | was an Associate
Coordinator to the Program Director for the State of
Al aska, Head Start program with the Departnent of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 20, 2007



Education and Early Devel opnent. A great deal of ny
time was spent doing research concerning the
transition of young foster children’s care in foster
hones and out-of-home care to their lives of self-
sufficiency. As a teacher, there were many students
in ny classroons that were living in foster care and
were about to, or had transitioned to, independent
living outside their small comunities. In ny life as
a parish priest |1 had opportunities in private,
congregational and comunity mnistries to pastor
famlies who cared for foster children and also to the
foster children who “aged-out” of foster care.

My experiences and ny research revealed that those
youth who did age out of foster care versus their
counterparts who were not a part of the foster care

system al | faced higher risks and the actual
experiences of honel essness, unenploynent, financial
har dshi ps, di m ni shed physi cal heal t h, crim nal

behavi ors, psycho-social disorders, suicide and | ower
achi evenents in education.

Most of these precious children (young adults) want to
pursue (ASPIRE to) education beyond high school but
the financial roadblocks are too great for them to
even begin, let alone conplete a higher educational
degr ee. Many studies have shown that nearly 75
percent of these young adults nust abandon the idea of
pursui ng a degree or conplete it.

This proposed House Bill, HB 135, and its program
woul d effectively address this challenge that these
young people face. It is a program that would bring
the guiding principal of real comunity together. |t

woul d gi ve t he ability and opportunity for
i ndi viduals, faith-based organizations, businesses,
civic groups and other organizations to invest in our
nost precious commodity, the youth of our State. They

are our future. This proposal wll enable them to
fulfill their dreans and live productive |lives. These
youth are our future investnent who wll in turn,
fulfill the visions of our great State.

3:18: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how nuch of the total budget of
$41,000 will be targeted for television adverti sing.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 20, 2007



MR. CURRAN responded that the adm nistration of the program w ||
take 25 percent of the tinme of the existing program coordinator.
He stated that $20 per year is estimated for contractual funds
to print brochures and support a pronotional effort.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that the anount should be
$20, 000.

MR. CURRAN agreed that there nmust be a m sprint.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON again asked whether the television
advertising is included.

MR. CURRAN said that he did not know.
3:19: 48 PM

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that the fiscal note indicates $20, 000
per year for contractual funds.

3:20: 13 PM

CH P WAGONER, Executive Director, Al aska Conference of Catholic
Bi shops, stated his organization's support for HB 135. He
informed the commttee that, as an advocate for nany children's
services, he has testified in support of many state funded
prograns for the poor. M. Wagoner acknow edged that the
government can not provide all of the services to the poor that
are needed and that this bill wll provide an opportunity for
i ndi viduals, under the obligation of their faith, to support the
poor . It is very inportant, M. Wagoner added, to nmarket this
program so individuals are aware of the opportunity to
participate in supporting educational goals for foster children.

3:22:25 PM

M KE LESMANN, Community Relations Manager, Ofice of Children’s
Services (OCS), Departnent of Health & Social Services (DHSS),
stated support for HB 135 on behalf of the departnent,
paraphrasing from a prepared statenent, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

The departnent supports HB 135 and would like to thank
the sponsor for introducing this idea to nenbers of
the House. W have worked closely with Senator Ellis
and his staff on the |anguage of the Senate s version

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 20, 2007



of this bill. Children that become wards of the State
are sonetinmes not financially prepared to enroll in
post - secondary educational opportunities. The ASPI RE
program woul d create the potential for their comunity
to assist them in that endeavor. I f you believe that
the young are our future, this is inportant
| egislation to all Al askans.

3:23:32 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether a foster child s Permnent Fund
Dividend (PFD) will be deposited to the savings account.

MR. LESMANN replied that children in state custody have their
PFD directed to a trust fund each year. Whien the child is
emanci pated or released to their famly, guardian, or adoptive
famly, the PFD is released to them He opined that the PFD
will not be deposited to the coll ege savings account.

3:24: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN referred to the fiscal note and asked
whether the estimated cost is just to keep a central office
open.

VR. LESMANN opined that one FBCl staff person wll be
adm ni stering the program and the $20,000 will be dedicated to
mar ket i ng.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked how many young adults wll be
affected by this bill.

MR. LESMANN answered that approximately 2,100 children are
placed in state custody outside of their hones. O those
children, he said, 96 will attain the age of 18 as of 08/01/07.
3:27: 05 PM

CHAIR WLSON noted that this would be approximately 100 per
year.

MR. LESMANN affirnmed that the nunber of children in state
custody changes daily, but it could be around 100 per year who
age-out of the system

3:27:30 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether a provision will be made to
all ow the beneficiary of the programto neet his/her sponsor.

MR. LESMANN answered that the bill directs FBCl, OCS, and the
Division of Juvenile Justice (DJJ), to admi nister the program
He opined that this idea has been discussed and wll require the
agreenent of the donor.

3:29:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether these savings accounts wl|
be held for children who are adopted, and whether the adoptive
parents will have access to the savings.

MR. LYNCH responded that a determination on this issue would be
made by the director of the departnent at the tine. He advi sed
that the state is the owner of the account.

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the details are still fluid because
t he regul ati ons have not been witten.

MR. LYNCH replied that the state will be the owner of the
account and UA will follow the directions, provided by DHSS,
regarding the distribution of the funds.

3:31:41 PM

MR. LESMANN added that two possibilities have been envisioned
One is the possibility that the donor will know the recipient.
The donor could be a neighbor of the foster parent. Thus, the
donor may specify a certain child as the recipient. Anot her

possibility is of a child who is aging out of the state system
who has been achieving academcally, and who does not have a
sponsor. This child could be identified by the state and becone
a recipient. He opined that there is not an age or tine
specified for the rel ease of the savings account.

3:33:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON called the conmttee's attention to page
2, lines 19 and 20, of the bill and said that there is no
indication that the account is only to be used for educational
pur poses. He suggested that, as this bill goes forward, it
should be nmade clear that these funds can only be used for
education, and the donor should be confident of that purpose.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- March 20, 2007



3:35:38 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether a group of people could donate to a
child, even if the program was not al ready established.

MR. LESMANN told the commttee that comunity nenbers can
specify a child as a recipient and donations can be directed to
that child. However, information about the child, or donors
can not be disclosed unless HB 135 passes and anends the
exi sting statute.

3:37:03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA commented that it 1is inportant that
educational opportunities are made available to children in
foster care. She then asked what safeguards have been put in
place to ensure that foster children aging out of the system
have the educational "pieces" in place to benefit fromthis type
of program She advised that children in state custody need
extra oversight due to wunintended consequences that can be

brought to bear by foster parents with ill will. Representative
Cissna said that, in her experience, foster children are known
targets and are vulnerable to abuse by adults. She asked

whet her the departnent will be able protect them and direct the
savi ngs accounts to them sinultaneously.

3:40: 39 PM
MR. LESMANN said that he could not answer that question.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA stated that her confidence in this bil
woul d be raised if the sponsors consult with the Annie E. Casey
Foundati on and the judicial system

3:41:40 PM

CHAI R W LSON observed that the nobney does not go into the hand
of a recipient or a foster parent, but directly to the
educational institution.

3:42: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES added that there is also the question of
what happens to the noney if the recipient does not attend the
school . He then called the commttee's attention to page 3,
line 1 and 2, that defines "out-of-hone care"” as care at the
residence or facility at which a child is placed by the state.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 20, 2007



Representative Roses clarified that this definition does not
include every child attending the residential program at M.
Edgecunbe Hi gh School .

MR. LESMANN said, "That is correct."”
3:43: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER added that a child is not placed at M.
Edgecunbe, but is accepted or enrolled. She went on to say that
mar keting the needs of a child may result in many donations for
that child. In addition, the needs of a child in a small
community may be well known to conmunity mnenbers. In those
cases, a child may be over sponsored, and others may be eligible
but not have sponsors. The distribution of donations should be
fair under any circunstances.

MR. LESMANN acknow edged that the details of admnistering the
program are not fully established. However, if an individual
has an account which is already well endowed, the departnent
will need to informthe donor.

3:45:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether there are contribution
i ncentives for the donors.

MR. LYNCH replied that if a contribution is properly nmade it
woul d qualify for a federal tax deduction.

3:46: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA observed that many foster children are
placed in the Lower 48 wth relatives. She asked whether a
foster child housed outside of Alaska is considered a resident.
MR. LESMANN expressed his understanding that a ward of the state
of Alaska remains a resident, even when placed outside of the
state.

3:47:53 PM

CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.

3:48: 06 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked that the sponsor ensure that the
donations can only be used for educational purposes.

[ The sponsor indicated his agreenment fromthe gallery.]

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for confirmation that the sponsor
will contact the Annie E. Casey Foundati on.

[ The sponsor indicated his agreenment fromthe gallery.]
3:50:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH nmoved to adopt CSHB 135, 25-1LS0592\C
as the working docunent.

[Although not formally stated, Version C was before the
commttee.]

3:50: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHB 135, Version C, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

135(HES) was reported out of the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Commttee.

HB 178-EMPLOYM T OF PECPLE W DI SABI LI TI ES COM

3:51: 29 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 178, "An Act relating to the Governor's Committee
on Enploynent of People with Disabilities; and providing for an
effective date."

3:51:32 PM

ROBERT MYERS, Intern to Representative Peggy WIson, presented
HB 178, on behalf of the sponsor, paraphrasing from a prepared
st at enent which read as follows [ origi nal punct uati on
provi ded] :

W have brought HB 178 before you as a request from
the Governor’s Council on Enploynent of People wth
Disabilities. Congress has changed the requirenents
for these conmttees, and we need to change our
statute to conply in order to continue to receive

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- March 20, 2007



f eder al
percent federal,

noney for

Sections 1 and 5 are for
Rehabilitation” to the title

t he program
so this is inportant to them

a nane change.

Their budget is 70

They add “and
of the commttee.

Sections 2 through 4 gives the changes required to
bring us into conpliance with federal |aw These
provisions include allowng for nore people on the
council, the selection of comittee nenbers as per
federal statute, an elected rather than appointed
chair, and new requirenments for neetings.

Section 6 gives the bill
3:53: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON called the
2, line 19 and 20, and asked for

meetings to be attended in person.

one
t he

CHAIR W LSON responded that
all nmenbers in person, and
t el econf erenced.

MR. MYERS affirned Representative

3:54: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whet her

an i medi ate effective date

committee's attention to page

clarification of the nunber of
meeting per year wll include
other three neetings wll be

Wlson's interpretation.

there is an enforceable

penalty for non-conpliance of attendance requirenents by
menbers.

3:54: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER acknow edged that attendance for any
conmittee is difficult.

3:55:45 PM

GALE  SI NNOTT, Di rector, St atewi de  Prograns, Division of
Vocational Rehabilitation, Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent , stated that menber s are allowed to neet

tel ephonically three tinmes per year,

3:56: 27 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14-

and neet once face-to-face.

March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered [Conceptual Anendnent 1] for page
2, line 20, and strike the words "all nenbers attend the" and
substitute, after shall, "be a neeting in person.”

CHAI R W LSON suggested inserting "shall be a group neeting."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the drafters can correct a
conceptual anendnent.

3:57:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her opinion that there is a
cont radi ction. The | anguage could be interpreted to nean that
each nenber nust attend at | east one neeting in person.

M5. SINNOTT confirnmed that the nenbers neet four tinmes a year,
in fact, it does not specify in federal regulations that nenbers
neet telephonically or face-to-face. She suggested that the
entire sentence be del et ed.

CHAIR WLSON stated that if the federal guidelines require one
face-to-face neeting per year this |anguage should stay for
fundi ng pur poses.

3:59: 07 PM

PAULA SCAVERA, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Labor & Wirkforce Developnent, stated that
Conceptual Amendnent 1 was the original |anguage provided to the
drafters and it was renoved. M. Scavera said that she inforned
the drafters that three neetings could be telephonic, but one
nmeeti ng per year should be face-to-face and with a quorum

4:00: 04 PM

CHAI R W LSON obj ected to Conceptual Amendnent 1.

4:00: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH r enmar ked:

there are exceptions where people will not be able

to be at the neeting and so they nmy designate a
nmeeting that is, this is the in person neeting, and be
able to offer travel arrangenents but the agreenent

between the parties that are serving on the committee
is that if they don't make it by chance, they would

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 20, 2007



show up to a different neeting and be flown in to a
different nmeeting, if necessary, to neet the one per
year requirenent of face-to-face.

M5. SCAVERA agreed. She then said that this |anguage is in the
meeting section of the bill and not in the conposition, or
sel ection of nenbers, section.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH r emar ked:
In, Representative Seaton, that was his specific

point, on trying to drive it differently and so we
interpreted that everyone had to be there. And then

his followup question was, "Wat's the consequence
for not attending?" And that's why | actually pulled
the statute and | don't really see a consequence

i nside of [AS] 23.15.
4:01: 51 PM

M5. SINNOTT said that there is no consequence in the bill. She
infornmed the nenbers that each governor's conmittee has a set of
byl aws for that purpose.

4:02:16 PM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES offered an anendnent to Concept ual
Amendnent 1, which read:

Menber s may partici pate in quarterly nmeeti ngs
tel ephonically, except that one neeting each year
shall be in person

CHAI R W LSON obj ected for discussion purposes. She then said:

My interpretation is that there has to be four
neetings a year and the only qualification that one of
them has to be a neeting where everyone is invited to
the same spot. And that's all

M5. SCAVERA said that Representative WIson is correct. She
suggested to include "there shall be one public neeting”, but
said that the bottomline is that you have to have four neetings
a year and one nust be a public neeting with nenbers in
attendance, and the others can be tel ephonic.

CHAIR WLSON said that "all nenbers” should be renpved.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- March 20, 2007



4:04: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES explained his anmendnment to Conceptual
Amendnent 1. He sai d t hat Representati ve Seaton's
interpretation is that there are [four] neetings and for one of
the nmeetings the attenpt is nade to have all of the nenbers in
t he same room However, Representative Faircl ough's
interpretation is that if a nmenber did not participate in the
face-to-face nmneeting, the nenber could personally attend a
different neeting. Representative Roses stated that both
interpretations were confirned by Ms. Scavera.

4: 05: 00 PM
MB. SCAVERA renar ked:

: if we had a public neeting and not all nenbers
were able to attend that public neeting, we would not
have a telephonic neeting and fly one person in and
the rest not. W ... try very hard, give different
dates, to have a public neeting, once a year for this
conmittee, where all nenbers can attend. And we, it's
a scheduling nightmare, but we try to nake that
happen.

4:05: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that <crossing out the |ast
"meeting” in line 20 would not be a problem but taking out "for
at least one" is problematic because the commttee may wish to
meet in person nore than once.

4:06: 38 PM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES w thdrew his anendnent to Conceptua
Amendrent 1.

4:06: 49 PM
MS. SCAVERA suggested taking out the word "all"™ on line 20.
4:07: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her understanding that this
commttee is being changed from 12 nmenbers to the new federal

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 20, 2007



mandat e. Referring to the fiscal note, she asked whether the
commttee now has only three nmenbers.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that there wll be three additional
menbers.

4:07:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA of fered, for discussion, that "a quorum of
menbers nmay participate in quarterly neetings telephonically,
except for at |east one neeting each year shall be in person.”
She added that it is a good idea to always have a quorum

M5. SINNOTT affirmed that a quorumis needed at all neetings to
conduct busi ness.

4:09:01 PM

MS. SCAVERA stated that Representative G ssna' s suggestion woul d
be an accept abl e conceptual anendnent.

4:09: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON restated Conceptual Amendnent 1 that would
read as foll ows:

Menber s may participate in quarterly meet i ngs
tel ephonically except for at |east one neeting each
year shall be a neeting in person.

4:09: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that she would be voting against
Conceptual Anendnent 1 due to the fact that the attorneys at
Legislative Legal and Research have already renoved that
| anguage.

4:10: 17 PM

CHAIR W LSON observed that the drafters could be instructed to
follow the commttee's direction

4:10: 38 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN pointed out that the governor wll be
notified if a menber is not attending appropriately, and that
woul d make the | anguage in the bill applicable.

4:11: 39 PM

M5. SINNOIT stated that the federal guidelines require the
enpl oynment conmittee to neet four tinmes per year, but not all
menbers have to neet four tines per year. She agreed that "all"”
shoul d be renoved.

4:12:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed her belief that the | anguage
needs to be clarified by the drafters.

4:12:56 PM

MS. SCAVERA offered to work with the chair's staff and the
drafters to correct the | anguage.

4:13: 23 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for the next conmttee of referral.
4:13: 34 PM

CHAIR WLSON responded that the next commttee of referral is
t he House Finance Comittee.

4:14: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recommended that the bill be noved out of
comm ttee.

CHAIR WLSON recalled that there is an anendment to consi der
4:14: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked whether the comrmittee bylaws wll
address the question of the nunber of required neetings.

M5. SINNOTT replied no. She further advised that the retention
of menbers is not a part of state statute or federal regulation,
but is addressed in the commttee byl aws.

4:15: 03 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rem nded the committee that the anendment
is conceptual and that the chair's staff is aware of its intent.

CHAIR WLSON renoved her objection. There being no further
obj ecti on, Conceptual Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

4:15: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to report HB 178, as amended, out of
conmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes.

4:15:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH obj ected to Conceptual Amendnent 1.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES withdrew the notion to report HB 178, as
anmended, from conmttee.

4:16: 09 PM

CHAIR WLSON called for a roll call vote.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for a reading of the anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON re-read Conceptual Anendnent 1 as foll ows:
Menber s may partici pate in gquarterly neet i ngs
tel ephonically except that at |east one neeting each
year shall be a neeting in person.

4:16:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for discussion of the objection.

4:16:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH restated that the original |anguage is
correct.

4:17:31 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Seaton, G ssna
Gar dner, Roses, and WIlson voted in favor of Conceptua
Amendnent 1. Representatives Fairclough and Neuman voted

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 20, 2007



against it. Therefore, Conceptual Amendnent 1 passed by a vote
of 5-2.

4:18: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to report HB 178, as anmended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 178(HES), was
reported out of the House Health, Education and Social Services
St andi ng Comm ttee.

HB 113- OPTOVETRI STS' USE OF PHARVACEUTI CALS

4:18: 46 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 113, "An Act relating to the prescription and use
of pharmaceutical agents, including controlled substances, by
optonetrists.”

4:19:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noved to adopt CSHB 113, Version 25-
LS0411\ K, Bullard, 3/5/07. There being no objection, Version K
was before the conmttee.

4:19: 35 PM
REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS, Al aska State Legislature, speaking

as the prime sponsor, paraphrased from the sponsor statenent
whi ch read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

House Bill 113 would allow optonetrists to prescribe
systemic (oral) nedication to treat a patient's eyes
or for an allergic shock reaction. Currently Al askan

optonetrists are limted to prescribing only topical
nmedi cations, while optonetrists in 45 states, the
District of Colunmbia and Guam are able to prescribe
system c (oral) nedications.

The course of study that optonetrists wundergo is
conparabl e or exceeds that required of their peers in
the health care professionals who are already granted
the ability to prescribe nedications. Optonetry
prograns include several senesters of pharmacol ogy, in
addition to studies in human anatony, physiology, and
bi ochem stry. Opt onetri sts, like dentists and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 20, 2007



podi atrists, attend four vyears of graduate school
after receiving their undergraduate degree, while
nurse practitioners and physicians assistants only
conplete two years of graduate school. Yet of these
pr of essi ons, only optonetrists are [imted to
prescribing topical agents.

Regul ations are already in place to ensure that only
qualified optonetrists may prescri be system c
medi cati ons. Optonetrists nust pass an exam such as
the "Treatnent and Managenent of Ocul ar Disease" from
the National Board of Examiners in Optonetry, and mnust
show t hat they have conpleted the necessary continuing
education in pharnacology each vyear in order to
prescri be any nedi cations authorized under statute.

| ncreasing optonetrists' prescribing authority wll be
of benefit to Al askan patients, preventing those who
require oral or inject-able prescriptions from having
to visit a general practitioner in addition to their
regul ar optonetrist. This will save patients tine and
noney, and allow optonetrists greater participation in
their patients' care.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS cautioned the commttee that it will hear
much testinony that nmay not support the bill; however, it is
i nportant and necessary.

4:21:36 PM

CHAIR WLSON clarified that this bill will enable optonetrists
to treat anaphyl actic reaction and ot her conditions.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said that HB 113 is especially for the
benefit of rural Alaskans, and these services are comonly
performed across the country in less rural areas.

4:22:44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked how many communities in Al aska have
an optonetrist, but do not have an ophthalnologist or a
physi ci an.

REPRESENTATI VE  SAMJELS  answer ed t hat t here are twenty
opht hal ol ogists in six locations, and one hundred and nine
optonetrists in eighty-five |ocations.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 20, 2007



4:24:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked how many optonetrists are |ocated on
t he road system

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS deferred answering her question to his
staff.

4:24: 48 PM
CHAI R W LSON requested a description of Version K
4:24:58 PM

SYDNEY MORGAN, Staff to Representative Ralph Sanuels, Al aska
State Legislature, prinme sponsor, explained that Version K
specifies the scope of the prescriptive authority and
educational requirenents. She said that additions in Sec. 1
clarify that the endorsenent allows the ©prescription of
phar maceuti cal agents if the applicant passes the exam on ocul ar
phar macol ogy, conpletes 23 hours in an approved non-topical
t herapeutic pharmaceutical agent course, and conpletes seven
hours in an injections course. She continued to say that a new
subsection is included in Sec. 2, that adds endorsenent renewal
requirements of eight hours of continuing education concerning
the use and prescription of pharmaceutical agents, seven hours
of continuing education concerning injections, and other board
requirenents. In addition, new | anguage in Sec. 3 defines what
controll ed substance the endorsenent allows the |icensee to
prescribe. An allowable controlled substance is prescribed and
used for the treatment of ocular disease or conditions, ocular
adnexal disease or conditions, or energency anaphylaxis; is not
a schedule 1, 2, or 6 drug; is not prescribed for nore that four
days of use; is not injected into the eyeball. In addition, the
| icensee nust have a physician-patient relationship and a Drug
Enf orcenent Admi nistration (DEA) registration nunber.

4:28:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for a definition of a physician-
patient relationship.

M5. MORGAN expressed her understanding that it would have to do

with the paynment for the service and she offered to supply a
clear definition at a |l ater date.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 23- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH referred to page 3, line 5, and asked
for clarification of the term "physician-patient relationship.”
She asked whether an optonetrist will be considered a physician
inthe interpretation of the term

4:29:59 PM

CHAIR WLSON noted that the bill states, "as defined by the
board in regulation.”

4:30:13 PM

M5. MORGAN added that further testinmony will be provided on this
subj ect .

4:30: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the four-day limt on the
prescription will prevent a patient from conpleting a course of
anti biotics.

4:31:12 PM

M5. MORGAN offered that optonetrists can address the majority of
i ssues brought before themw thin the tine limt.

4:31:42 PM

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that the four-day limt only pertains
to a controlled substance, such as pain nedication, not an
antibiotic. She opined that a patient who needs pain nedication
for nore than four days will need to be referred to a doctor.

4:32:31 PM

Cl NDY BRADFORD, Doctor of Ophthal nology, Anmerican Acadeny of
Opht hal nmol ogy; Assi stant Professor, Dean A. M Cee Eye Institute,
Department of Ophthal nol ogy, University of OCklahonma Health
Center, University of klahoma, stated her opposition to HB 113.
She informed the commttee that she teaches ophthal nol ogy and
eye surgery to internal nedicine and famly practice resident

medi cal students. Dr. Bradford stated that HB 113 is an
expansion of what is legal in nobst of the other states.
Okl ahoma allows for the broadest of authority of optonetry, and
the Alaska bill wll be broader than all but Gkl ahona. It is
important, she said, that optonetry and ophthal nology work
together to serve the large nunber of patients. However, this

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 20, 2007



bill renoves the |limts of the pharmaceutical rights of
optonetry and expands the rights to nedications that affect the
entire body. She opined that narcotics are rarely needed for
eye conditions unless a patient has had retinal surgery. These
system c nedications interact with other nedications being taken
by a patient and, in fact, factors can be involved on a |eve
that an optometrist would not be trained to diagnose and
prescribe for the type of treatnent that is covered in HB 113
Dr. Bradford described the training involved for optonetry
ver sus opht hal nol ogy. She concluded by saying that quality care
for patients nmeans that they are treated by professionals who
have been trained to diagnose and prescribe appropriately.

4:40: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked about drug and drug interaction
trai ning for ophthal nol ogi sts.

DR. BRADFORD replied that there is a one year internship
treating patients wth many diseases, and supervised by an
attending physician. She reviewed the teaching process
regar di ng phar macol ogy.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked about the percentage of

training time that is dedicated to drug interaction and
phar maceut i cal s.

DR. BRADFORD responded that every day of nedical school,
students are | earning about nedications and drugs.

4:42: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked Dr. Bradford to estinmate the tine
optonetrists spend |earning about drug interaction and the use
of the pharmaceuticals that are endorsed by HB 113.

DR. BRADFORD opined that this bill endorses a large group of
system ¢ pharnaceuticals that affect the entire body, and that
optonetri sts woul d never have encount er ed.
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES restated his question.

DR. BRADFORD enphasized that the nedications that this bill
al l ows are beyond an optonetrist's clinical experience.

4:44:21 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 25- March 20, 2007



CHAI R W LSON asked about an opht hal nol ogi st' s internship.

DR. BRADFORD answered that, during the one-year internship,
students are not working in the eye clinic but are studying
internal nedicine and are managing a variety of patients.

4:46: 55 PM

LESLEY L. WALLS, Physician of Optonetry, Medicine, and president
of the Southern California College of Optonetry, stated his
support for HB 113.

CHAIR WLSON asked for a description of Dr. Wlls' nedical
trai ni ng.

DR. WALLS responded that he is a board certified famly doctor
an optonetrist, and is a forner associate dean of the University

of Gkl ahomma. He opined that Alaska's optonetrists are able to
safely and effectively use the drugs and treatnents allowed in
the bill. Dr. Walls said that the four year continuing
education requirenent is nore than adequate, together with the
four year degree that optonetrists hold. He described the
training that optonmetrists receive and disagreed wth the
previous testifier. Dr. Walls assured the conmttee that, upon

graduation, optonetrists have the clinical experience and the
pat hol ogi cal and pharnacol ogi cal gualifications to nanage
patients.

4:51: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked what percentage of training an
optonetrist receives for the dispensing of, and interaction
wi th, the drugs authorized by HB 113.

DR. WALLS replied that it is difficult to say; however, it is a
maj or part of every exam nation. In addition, an optonetrist's
clinical experience is with patients who have potential drug
i nteractions.

4:52:31 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Dr. Walls is famliar wth
Al aska's licensing exam for optonetrists, and whether the test

is adequate to determne the ability of the state optonmetrists
to adm ni ster these drugs.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 20, 2007



DR. WALLS, calling on his experience as a Dean of Optonetry at
the Southern California College of Optonmetry, and as a fornmer
menber of the National Board of Examners in Optonetry, assured

the commttee that it is a rigorous exam nation. In fact, he
said that he has been involved in the devel opnment of training
and testing for the courses of injectable and systemc

medi cati ons in other states.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Dr. WAlls could conpare the
optonetrist's and opht hal nol ogi st' s state certifications
regardi ng the use of pharnmaceuti cal s.

DR. WALLS responded that ophthal nologists automatically hold
full prescriptive authority by their state nedical |icense. I n
answer to a question, he added that optonetrist's |icensing
falls under state statute.

4:55:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked what role a pharmaci st would play in
di spensing the correct prescription drugs.

DR. WALLS replied that his college recommends to its students
the use of pharmacists as a resource in nmany areas.

4:56: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked Dr. Walls to conpare Al aska with the
licensing tests in other states that currently allow
optonetrists to prescri be pharnmaceutical agents.

DR. WALLS responded that Alaska's test wll be nore rigorous
because it requires nore hours of training on injectables;
however, testing on prescribing systemc drugs is simlar to
t hat of other states.

4:56: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Dr. Wall knew what Kkind of
i nsurance and mal practice insurance coverage an optonetrist or
opht hal nol ogi st woul d be required hol d.

DR. WALLS informed the conmittee that mal practice insurance has
not increased in the states that allow optonetrists the expanded
responsi bilities authorized by HB 113.

4:57:51 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether there is a large range of
limtations in the 45 states that allow expanded authority by
optometri sts.

DR.  WALLS noted that, except for nedical and osteopathic

doct or at es, i ndi vi dual | egi sl atures set t he i censing
requirenments. Therefore, there are no identical |aws between
states.

4:59: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked what t he maj or, new

responsibilities are that optonetrists are allowed to performin
various states.

5:00: 12 PM

DR. WALLS answered that sone states don't allow injections, or
may have restrictions on certain nedications.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH further asked Dr. Walls to conpare
Al aska's law with the other 45 states and requested the specific
di sparity between the state's regul ations.

5:02:10 PM
DR. WALLS referred to information that can be provided by the

American Optometric Association and that describes state by
state prescriptive authority.

5:02: 38 PM

M CHAEL  BENNETT, Doct or of Opt onet ry; Pr esi dent, Al aska
Optonetry Association, informed the comrmittee that he is in
private practice in Juneau. Dr. Bennett said that he received

his education in Mchigan and al so has research experience.
5:04:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether his degree is a Doctorate
in Optonetry.

DR. BENNETT answered yes. He explained that optonetrists have

been recogni zed as physicians by Medicare and insurance carriers
since the 1970s.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether all optonetrists are
doct ors.

DR.  BENNETT responded yes. He added that there 1is an
accreditation board for optonmetry schools. Optonetrists attend
four years of medi cal school including 200 hours of
phar macol ogy, plus anatony and clinical work. Dr. Bennett

continued to say that optometrists, who see many patients, are
the gate keepers to eye care. Al day long his patients cone in
with nmultiple health issues. Dr. Bennett said that he nakes
frequent contact with his patient's primary care physician. In
response to a question, he explained that his is a standard
practice and his training is simlar to others in his field.

CHAIR WLSON observed that all optometric schools require 200
hours of pharnmacol ogy. She then asked about undergraduate
requirenents.

DR. BENNETT replied that the criterion is an undergraduate
degree, just as though a student was applying to any other
nmedi cal school

CHAIR WLSON confirnmed that all optonetric schools require four
years of study.

5:09:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked Dr. Bennett about the percentage of
his patients that have been referred to ophthal nol ogists for
care.

DR. BENNETT responded that, over the length of his practice,
between 15 to 20 percent have been referred.

5:11: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the passage of HB 113 wl|
af fect the percentage of referrals.

DR. BENNETT estinmated that the change would not decrease the
referrals by one percent. VWhat is primarily addressed in this
bill is the treatnment of eyelid infections, and the nmajority of
t hese are very m nor.

5:12:13 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 29- March 20, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES questi oned whether the passage of this bill
is a way for optonetrists to begin to perform |aser and
corrective surgery.

DR. BENNETT di sagr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the passage of this bill wll
significantly increase Dr. Bennett's income stream

DR. BENNETT answered, "I don't think it's going to change ny
income stream at all." He explained that a patient is charged
when they are seen, whether they are referred or not. He opined
that HB 113 wll result in a snmall percentage of increased
cases.

5:13: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Dr. Bennett has any concerns
about patient care if HB 113 passes.

DR. BENNETT enpathized with the conmttee's responsibility to
deal with an unknown entity. However, he opined that the track
record is inpeccable for optonetrists and the committee should
not have too much concern. The states with simlar regul ations
that were polled by the Alaska State Medical Board in 2001, do
not have problens to report or an increase in malpractice
i nsurance cases.

5:16: 15 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER r equested a copy of the 2001 survey.
5:17: 00 PM

BOB LOESCHER inforned the commttee that he is a l|life long
Juneau resident and has traveled extensively in rural Al aska.
M. Loescher explained that he is opposed to HB 113. As a
ki dney transplant patient and a diabetic, he is under the care
of an opht hal nol ogi st . Hs sight is lost in one eye, and there
is no regaining what is |ost. As a citizen with many eye care
conditions, he urged the conmittee to consider the inportance of
the eyes to patients. H s optonetrist did tests but, within a
week, his diabetes took his eyesight. The optonetrist did not
know about his other nmedical conditions. Also, he is on
steroids, and a doctor’s care is inportant to manage these types
of drugs. He suggested that the prescription of drugs is of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- March 20, 2007



critical inportance and asked the conmittee to err on the side
of nmedi cal doctors and support opht hal nol ogy.

5:23: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES comented that this bill has brought
testimony from doctors, but that M. Loescher is the first
i ndi vidual citizen to cone forward.

5:23:43 PM

CHAIR WLSON related a personal story of msdiagnosis, and
observed that, regardless of the title, a doctor may or nmay not
be conpetent.

5:25:10 PM

JILL GEERING MATHESON, Doctor of Optonetry, and chair of the
Al aska State Board of Examners in Optonetry, stated her
personal support for HB 113. She said that the board has not
i ssued an official position; however, she assured the conmttee
that if HB 113 passes, the board wll cooperate wth the
department to pass regul ati ons.

5:26:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES repeated his question about optonetrists
trying to get approval to performlaser surgery.

DR. GEERI NG MATHESON answered that |aser surgery is not included
in HB 113.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether Dr. GCeering WMatheson's
revenue streamw ||l be increased by the passage of the bill.

DR. CEERI NG MATHESON sai d no.
5:27:26 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that HB 113 would be held over for
further testinony.

5:27:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked the sponsor to have the Al aska
State Medical Board provide an opinion on the bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 31- March 20, 2007



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:27:53 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 32- March 20, 2007



